
 

 

 

 

 

CCOC ANNUAL CORPORATION 

MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 



 

 

 

Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 
Annual Meeting 

Agenda 
Date: June 27, 2016 

Time: Immediately after the conclusion of the CCOC Executive Council Meeting that starts at 3:00 pm 
Rosen Shingle Creek; Orlando, Florida (St. Johns Room 33/34) 

Conference Call (800)977-8002 , Conference Code: 407639# 

      

 

 
 
Call to Order .................................................................................................................... Sharon Bock 
 
Roll Call .............................................................................................................................. CCOC Staff 
 
Approval of Agenda and Welcome ................................................................................. Sharon Bock 
 

1) Approval of Minutes- May 31,2015.……………………………………………………….…………………..Ken Burke 
            Pages 2-5 
 

2) Chair’s Report.……………………….………….……..………………………………………………………………Sharon Bock 
   Page 6 
           
3) Treasurer’s Report for CFY 15/16………………..………………………………………………………………Ken Burke 

             Pages 7-9 
 

4) CCOC CFY 14/15 Financial Statement...……………………………..………………………………………….John Dew 
               Pages 10-40 
 

5) Proposed CFY 16/17 Corporation Budget.……..…………………….………………………………………Ken Burke 
                 Pages 41-44    
 

6) Council Meeting Proposed Dates for SFY 16/17……………………..…………………………………….John Dew 
    Pages 45-48 
 

7) Election of Council Executive Committee…..………………………………………………………………….Joe Boyd 
   Page 49 

                  
8) Other Business 
            

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CCOC Mission Statement: “As a governmental organization created by the Legislature, we evaluate Clerks’ court-related 
budgetary needs, and recommend the fair and equitable allocation of resources needed to sustain court operations.” 

 
 
 
 

 

Honorable Sharon Bock, Esq. 
Palm Beach 

Chair 
 

Honorable Bob Inzer 
Leon County 

Vice-Chair 
 

Honorable Ken Burke, CPA 
Pinellas County 

Secretary/Treasurer 
 

Honorable Stacy Butterfield, CPA 
Polk County 

 
Honorable John Crawford 

Nassau County 
 

Honorable Neil Kelly 
Lake County 

 
Honorable Harvey Ruvin 

Miami-Dade County 
 

Honorable Tim Sanders 
Madison County 

 
Supreme Court 

Honorable Ron Ficarrotta 
13th Judicial Circuit 

 
Senate  

Honorable Kyle Hudson 
Holmes County 

 
House 

Honorable Paula S. O’Neil, Ph.D 
Pasco County 

 
Joe Boyd 

General Counsel 
 

John Dew 
Executive Director 

 
2560-102 Barrington Circle 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Phone: 850.386.2223 
Fax: 850.386.2224 

 
 

1



 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES FROM MAY 31, 2015  

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 

2



MINUTES 

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 

SUNDAY, May 31, 2015 4:53PM 

CCOC ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

Ponte Vedra Beach, Florida 

 

The May 31, 2015 Annual Meeting of the Corporation of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation (CCOC) was called to order at 4:53 p.m., EST by Executive Council Chair Sharon Bock, who 

welcomed members and guests.  It is an Annual Meeting that is part of the by-laws and a meeting that all 

67 Clerks are participants. 

ROLL Taken by CCOC Staff – Quorum was present. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chair Bock welcomed everyone and asked for any additions to the agenda. There were none. Clerk Ruvin 

made the motion to accept the Agenda and Clerk Kelly seconded. The motion passed unanimously.   

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

Chair Bock began the Chair’s report by thanking all 67 Clerks for their hard work to serve the public. The 

CCOC has grown and become more innovative. They have brought in strategy, as well as bringing in 

representatives from both the big counties and the small counties into our workgroups. Chair Bock 

thanked all the chairs and workgroups. Chair Bock spoke of the Strategic planning meeting held at the end 

of the year. There were three strategic directions: Communication equals Collaboration equals 

Partnership. The CCOC has achieved an outstanding working relationship with the FCCC. It has been 

evident during this legislative process. There has been meetings on how to present the information. This 

is one of the goals that was stated.  

The CCOC has worked with our Justice partners, however, we have not met with the TCBC. Chair Bock 

would like to find out what they did to achieve their funding.  Executive Council member Judge Ficarrotta 

mentioned at the Council meeting that he is willing to help. 

We want to have a funding model that equals predictability, stability and operational excellence. Under 

the leadership of Clerk Butterfield and Clerk Green, we have done some really outstanding work which 

was highlighted by our first statewide Clerks’ endeavor in the collection effort called “Operation Green 

Light”. Sixty-five Clerks participated. It was truly a success. In conclusion, it is essential that we understand 

that data information equals knowledge. We have still not been able to get the State Legislature to 

understand that we are moving into a digital world and that digital world costs money.  Yet all in all it has 

been a very successful year. 

3



Clerk Bock thanked Council members, Chairs, Committee members and Clerks for their attendance.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Clerk Burke made motion to approve the June 8, 2014 Corporation Meeting minutes. Clerk O’Neil 

seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

TREASURER’S AND FINANCIAL REPORT 

Chair Bock called on Clerk Burke for the Treasurer’s Report. He stated that the finances were in order. 

Also included in the packet is the audited financial statement. This covers a fifteen month period. 

Mr. Burke moved that the Treasurer’s Report and Budget Financial Statements be approved as submitted. 

Clerk O’Neil seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

Chair Bock thanked Clerk Burke for being an excellent treasurer this year. 

Clerk Burke stated that it is hard to formulate a CCOC Office Budget with the uncertainty of the Legislature 

and the available funding.  He therefore made a motion that for now the CCOC office budget request be 

considered as a continuation budget until the Executive Committee finalizes the budgets for all Clerks. 

Clerk Sanders seconded. There was no discussion. Motion passed. 

Clerk Bock stated there are no amendments to the work plan. If there are any suggestions, she asked that 

the Corporation members bring those to Clerk Sanders as he is the Chair of the Plan of Operations 

Committee.   

COUNCIL MEETING PROPOSED DATES 

Chair Bock asked Mr. Dew to report. The dates are the same dates that were looked at by the Council. The 

dates can be found on page 40. Next year’s Corporation meeting will not be known until the dates for the 

Clerks’ Summer Conference is finalized.  Clerk Bock stated that if any Council member had any conflicts 

with the dates Mr. Dew presented then she asked them to let him know.  Chair Bock thanked Mr. Dew for 

his leadership and his staff.   

Chair Bock asked for questions or comments.  

Dr. O’Neil asked if Joe Boyd, CCOC General Counsel could sit at the table with the Clerks. He is asked a lot 

of questions and she is concerned that persons listening in on the phone cannot hear his answers.  

Mr. Dew thanked Chair Bock and her staff. Chair Bock recognized Shannon Ramsey Chessman and her 

team for the support she is provided.   

ELECTION OF CCOC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  

Chair Bock stated that Mr. Joe Boyd would be in charge of the Council election process. Mr. Boyd stated 

that the election of Officers of the Executive Committee is under Section 3-1 of the Plan of Operations. 

Present Chair is Sharon Bock, Clerk Bob Inzer is Vice-Chair and Clerk Ken Burke is Secretary-Treasurer. At 

4



this time the floor was open for nominations for a one year term of the CCOC Executive Committee.  Clerk 

Ken Burke made a motion to keep the present Executive Committee. Clerk Ruvin seconded the motion. 

Mr. Boyd asked if there were any further discussion. There was none. Motion passed.  

OTHER BUSINESS 

Chair Bock asked if there was any further business. Motion to adjourn was made by Clerk O’Neil. Seconded 

by Clerk Burke. 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:10 PM EST.  

 

5



 

 

 

 

 

CCOC ANNUAL REPORT FROM 

CHAIR 

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 

 

 

 

No materials provided 

6



 

 

 

 

 

CCOC TREASURER’S REPORT 

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 

 

 

 

7



 

      

  

Date: June 27, 2016 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 3:  Treasurer’s Report 
 

Corporation Action: 
Information Purposes 
 
Overview: 
The Corporation office is fiscally sound.  Last year the office stayed within their allocated 
budget.  Likewise they are currently spending within their allocated budget.   
 
Attached is the Treasurer’s Report for the first eight months of the current county fiscal year. 
Through April the office has expended approximately 52% of its budget. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
CFY 2015/16 Treasurer’s Report through May 2016  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CCOC Mission Statement:  “As a governmental organization created by the Legislature, we evaluate Clerks’ court-
related budgetary needs, and recommend the fair and equitable allocation of resources needed to sustain court 
operations.” 
 

 

Agenda Item 3 

 Honorable Sharon R. Bock, Esq. 
Palm Beach County 

Chair 
 

Honorable Bob Inzer 
Leon County 

Vice Chair 
 

Honorable Ken Burke, CPA 
Pinellas County 

Secretary/Treasurer 
 

Honorable Neil Kelly 
Lake County 

 
Honorable John Crawford 

Nassau County 
 

Honorable Harvey Ruvin 
Dade County 

 
Honorable Tim Sanders 

Madison County 
 

Honorable Stacy Butterfield, CPA 
Polk County Clerk 

 
Supreme Court 

Honorable Ron Ficarrotta 
13th Judicial Circuit Judge 

 
Senate  

Honorable Kyle Hudson 
Holmes County 

 
House 

Honorable Paula S. O’Neil Ph.D 
Pasco County 

 
Joe Boyd, Esq. 

General Counsel 
 

John Dew 
Executive Director 

 
2560-102 Barrington Circle 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Phone: 850.386.2223 
Fax: 850.386.2224 

  

8



9



 

 

 

 

 

CCOC FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

FROM CFY 14/15 

 

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 

 

 

 

10



 

      

  

Date: June 27, 2016 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 4: Corporation Audited Financial Statements 14/15  
 

Council Action: 
For Information Purposes and Corporation Membership Review.  
 
Overview: 
Each year an independent audit is conducted to review the financials of the Corporation office.  
The firm of Lanigan and Associates conducted a review of the financials for the twelve month 
period of October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015.   Lanigan provided their Independent 
Report to the CCOC Office in December.  The report was provided to the CCOC Executive Council 
and accepted at their February 16th, 2016 meeting. The report is now attached for the 
Corporation membership review.  The audit did not identify any deficiencies in internal controls.  
Further the audit disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  Finally, the audit revealed no need for a 
management letter with recommendations for improvement. 
 
  
 
 
Attachments:   
 

1. Corporation Financial Statements for County Fiscal Year October 1, 2014 through 
September 30, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
CCOC Mission Statement:  “As a governmental organization created by the Legislature, we evaluate Clerks’ court-
related budgetary needs, and recommend the fair and equitable allocation of resources needed to sustain court 
operations.” 
 

 

Agenda Item 4 

 
Honorable Sharon R. Bock, Esq. 

Palm Beach County 
Chair 

 
Honorable Bob Inzer 

Leon County 
Vice Chair 

 
Honorable Ken Burke, CPA 

Pinellas County 
Secretary/Treasurer 

 
Honorable Neil Kelly 

Lake County 
 

Honorable John Crawford 
Nassau County 

 
Honorable Harvey Ruvin 

Dade County 
 

Honorable Tim Sanders 
Madison County 

 
Honorable Stacy Butterfield, CPA 

Polk County Clerk 
 

Supreme Court 
Honorable Ron Ficarrotta 
13th Judicial Circuit Judge 

 
Senate  

Honorable Kyle Hudson 
Holmes County 

 
House 

Honorable Paula S. O’Neil Ph.D 
Pasco County 

 
Joe Boyd, Esq. 

General Counsel 
 

John Dew 
Executive Director 

 
2560-102 Barrington Circle 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Phone: 850.386.2223 
Fax: 850.386.2224 

 
 

  

11



December 2, 2015 

 

Board of Directors 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

2560-102 Barrington Circle 

Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

 

RE: Required Communication to Those Charged with Governance 

 

Dear Directors: 

 

We have audited the financial statements of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation as of 

and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated December 2, 

2015.  Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated November 6, 2015, our responsibility, as described 

by professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements 

that have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material 

respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective 

responsibilities. 

 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 

reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over 

financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Florida 

Clerks of Court Operations Corporation  solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures 

and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 

professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.  

 

12



 

However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 

communicate to you.  

 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 

you. 

 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

 

The engagement team and others in our firm, as appropriate, have complied with all relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence.  

 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

 

Significant Accounting Policies 

 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of 

the significant accounting policies adopted by Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation  is 

included in Note 1 to the financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting 

policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during 15 month period. 

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform 

you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of 

significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of 

authoritative guidance or consensus. 

 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 

based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and 

experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 

estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 

because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s 

current judgments. There were no sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements. 

 

Financial Statement Disclosures  

 

There were no sensitive disclosures affecting Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation ’s 

financial statements. 

 

Identified or Suspected Fraud  

 

We have not identified or obtained any information that indicates that fraud has occurred.  

 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 

 

13



 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  

 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 

likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and 

communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us 

to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant 

classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and 

each applicable opinion unit. Management has corrected all identified misstatements. 

 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 

misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. 

None of the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by 

management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as 

a whole. 

 

Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 

whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 

matter, which could be significant to Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation ’s financial 

statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

 

Representations Requested from Management 

 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which were included in a letter 

dated December 2, 2015.  

 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

 

In the normal course of our professional association with Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation, we generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting 

principles and auditing standards, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and 

operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters 

discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s 

auditors. 

 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation and is not intended to be and should not be used by 

anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

      

        Sincerely, 

 

 

 

        Lanigan & Associates, P.C. 

 

           Lanigan & Associates, PC

14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT 

OPERATIONS CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the State of Florida) 

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

15



CONTENTS 

 
Page No. 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT. .................................................................................1 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS. .............................................................4 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position .............................................................................................6 

Statement of Activities ..................................................................................................7 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund ............................................................................8 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – 

   Governmental Fund ...................................................................................................9 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes  

   in Fund Balance of Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities……..........10 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements…………………… ………………………….........11 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  

  Budget and Actual – Governmental Fund……….……………………………………..16 

 

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTS 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

  and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial  

  Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards………….18 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State Project and  

  on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Chapter 10.550, 

  Rules of the Auditor General ...........................................................................................20 

 

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance ...................................................22 

 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs……………………………………………..23 

 

 

 

 

16



LANIGAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BUSINESS ADVISORS 
www.lanigancpa.com 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

 

To the Board of Directors 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

Tallahassee, Florida 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Florida Clerks of Court 

Operations Corporation (a component unit of the State of Florida), as of and for the year ended 

September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 

comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility  

 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinions. 

 
17



To the Board of Directors 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

Page Two 

 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation as of September 30, 

2015, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended, in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matters  

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis information on pages 4 and 5 and the budgetary 

comparison on page 16 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 

historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 

information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 

basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 

an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s basic financial 

statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance is presented 

for purposes of additional analysis as required by Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, 

and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

 

The schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance is the responsibility of management 

and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 

prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 

procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 

accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 

financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 

expenditures of state financial assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 

basic financial statements as a whole.  

 

 

 
18



To the Board of Directors 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

Page Three 

 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

December 2, 2015, on our consideration of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s 

internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 

of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 

report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 

over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed 

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Florida Clerks of Court 

Operations Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tallahassee, Florida 

December 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           Lanigan & Associates, PC

19



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

Our discussion and analysis of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s (the 

FCCOC) financial performance provides an overview of the FCCOC’s financial activities for the 

year ended September 30, 2015.  Please read it in conjunction with the FCCOC’s basic financial 

statements, which begin on page 6.   

 

The Florida Clerks of Court Operations Conference (the Conference) was established in 2003 by 

Section 28.35, Florida Statutes, to establish a process for the review and approval of court-

related proposed budgets submitted by the respective Clerks of the Court.  The 2004 session of 

the Florida Legislature amended Section 28.35, Florida Statutes, making the Conference a public 

corporation and changing its name to Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation.   

 

During the 2009 session, the Florida Legislature changed the FCCOC from a quasi-governmental 

form of government to a governmental fund housed under the Justice Administrative 

Commission (JAC).  The Florida Legislature identified a source of court fees, collected from the 

Clerks throughout the State, to fund the operations of the FCCOC.   

  

Beginning on July 1, 2013, the Florida Legislature changed the structure and funding for the 

FCCOC.  The corporation reverted back to being a separate entity with a September 30 fiscal 

year end and will no longer be housed under the JAC.  Instead, the FCCOC will be funded 

pursuant to a contract with the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida.  The employees of 

the corporation will still participate in the Florida Retirement System.  Further, the Corporation 

may hire staff and pay other expenses necessary to perform the official duties and 

responsibilities. 

 

The FCCOC issues basic financial statements comprised of three components: 1) government-

wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  

The FCCOC is considered a blended component unit of the State of Florida. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
20



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

 

The following table presents the FCCOC’s condensed Statement of Net Position as of September 

30, 2015 and 2014, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

 

Table 1 – Net Position 

2015 2014

Total Assets 792,495$           435,780$           

Total Liabilities 135,809 80,383

Net Position 656,686$           355,397$           

 
 

 

The following table presents the FCCOC’s condensed Statement of Activities for year ended 

September 30, 2015 and 2014, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities. 

 

Table 2 – Changes in Net Position 

2015 2014

Total Revenues 1,694,956$        2,027,238$        

Total Expenditures 1,393,667 1,605,556

Change in Net Position 301,289$           421,682$           

 
 

Requests for Information 

 

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 

information should be addressed to John Dew, Executive Director, Florida Clerks of Court 

Operations Corporation, 2560-102 Barrington Circle, Tallahassee, Florida 32308. 

 

 

 

 

21



Governmental 
Activities

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 765,180$              
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 3,922

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets:

Equipment, Net 23,393

Total Assets 792,495                

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 71,547                  

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Compensated Absences 64,262

Total Liabilities 135,809                

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 23,393                  
Unrestricted 633,293                

Total Net Position 656,686$              

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

LIABILITIES 

ASSETS

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  6
22



Program Revenues Net (Expenses)

Functions/Programs Expenses
 State Appropriations 

and Court Fees 

 Revenues and 
Changes in Net 

Assets 

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

State Courts 1,393,667$        1,694,577$                    300,910$           

Total Governmental Activities 1,393,667$        1,694,577$                    300,910             

Other Revenue 379

Change in Net Assets 301,289             

Net Position - Beginning of Year 355,397

Net Position - End of Year 656,686$           

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  7
23



FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Special Revenue 
Fund

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 765,180$            
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 3,922                  

Total Current Assets 769,102$            

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 71,547$              

Fund Balance
Restricted Fund Balance 697,555              

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 769,102$            

Amounts reported for "Governmental Activities" in Statement
of Net Position are different because:

Fund Balance - Governmental Fund 697,555$            

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation used in Governmental 
Activities, are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the fund financial statements. 23,393

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the fund financial statements. (64,262)

Net Position of Governmental Activities 656,686$            

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  8
24



Special Revenue 
Fund

Revenues
State Financial Assistance 1,694,577$        
Interest Income 379

Total Revenues 1,694,956

Expenditures
Current:

State Courts:
Personnel Services 775,011
Expenses 607,970
Capital Outlay 23,911

Total Expenditures 1,406,892

Net Change in Fund Balance  - Governmental Fund 288,064

Restricted Fund Balance, September 30, 2014 409,491             

Restricted Fund Balance, September 30, 2015 697,555$           

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  9
25



FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Net change in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund 288,064$           

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense of $6,436
exceeded capital outlay of $23,911 in the current period. 17,475               

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.
     Decrease in Compensated Absences (4,250)               

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 301,289$           

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  10
26



FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

Reporting Entity 

 

These financial statements are intended to present the financial position and results of operations 

of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation (FCCOC).  The FCCOC is a blended 

component unit of the State of Florida and is included in the State of Florida’s annual financial 

report.  The financial statements contained herein represent the financial transactions of only the 

FCCOC. 

 

The 2013 session of the Florida Legislature amended Section 28.35, Florida Statutes, making the 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation a stand-alone entity separate from the state and 

financed through a contract with the Department of Financial Services, effective July 1, 2013.   

 

FCCOC is classified as a not-for-profit governmental entity whose activities are accounted for in 

a special revenue fund.  The FCCOC has no component units. 

 

Government-Wide and Fund Accounting 

 

The FCCOC’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  

GASB Statement No. 34 establishes financial reporting requirements for state and local 

governments throughout the United States. The financial data of the FCCOC is presented in the 

required GASB format as discussed on the following pages. 

 

Government-Wide Accounting  

 

The government-wide financial statements, including the Statement of Net Position and the 

Statement of Activities, report information regarding the activities of the FCCOC. Government-

wide statements distinguish between government-type and business-type activities.  

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 

are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees 

and charges for support.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

As a branch of government that does not levy taxes, the FCCOC is funded by an appropriation of 

the Florida Legislature through a portion of the fees collected by the Clerks of Court for filing a 

civil action in Circuit Court, as specified in Section 28.241, Florida Statutes.  The government-

wide financial statements present this activity as a special revenue fund. 

 

Fund Accounting 

 

In fund accounting, the diverse nature of governmental operations and the necessity of 

determining compliance with legal provisions require modification of accounting systems 

commonly used by commercial enterprises.  The FCCOC special revenue fund is considered a 

separate entity with self-balancing accounts that include, where applicable, its assets, liabilities, 

fund equity, revenues, expenditures and other financial sources and uses. 

 

Government Fund Type: Special Revenue Fund – Special revenue funds are used to 

account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special assessments or 

expendable trusts) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

 

GASB Statement No. 54 requires fund balance reported in the governmental fund balance sheet 

to be classified using a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound 

to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. 

Within this hierarchy, fund balance is first classified as nonspendable, then restricted, committed, 

assigned, and unassigned.  

 

 Nonspendable – This component of fund balance consists of amounts that cannot be 

spent because (a) they are not expected to be converted to cash, or (b) they are legally or 

contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items, 

inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. 

 

 Restricted – This component of fund balance consists of amounts that are constrained 

either (a) externally by third parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 

regulations of other governments), or (b) by law through constitutional provisions or 

enabling legislation. 

 

 Committed – This component of fund balance consists of amounts that can only be used 

for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal resolution of the 

FCCOC’s board. These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless 

the board removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 

employed to constrain those amounts. 

 

 Assigned – This component of fund balance consists of amounts that are constrained by 

the FCCOC board’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor 

committed.  

 

The FCCOC is a special revenue fund and is a component unit of the State of Florida. The 

activities of the FCCOC are directed by Florida Statute. Accordingly, the fund balance is 

classified as restricted. 

 

 

 

28



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Net Position 

 

Net position represents all assets, plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, less 

deferred inflows of resources. The FCCOC does not have any amount required to be reported as 

deferred outflows/inflows of resources as of September 30, 2015. Net position is presented on 

the Statement of Net Position into the following categories: 

 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 

outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 

improvement of those assets. 

 

 Restricted – Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations on their use. 

 

 Unrestricted – All remaining net position that do not meet the definition of “net 

investment in capital assets” or “restricted”. 

 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for the same purpose, restricted net 

position are considered to be used first over unrestricted net position. 

 

Basis of Accounting 

 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and 

reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 

measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.  The accounting and financial 

reporting treatment applied is determined by the type of financial statement presentation. 

 

Measurement Focus 

 
The government-wide statements are reported using an economic resources management focus 

and accrual basis of accounting.  With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities 

associated with the operation of governmental-type and business-type activities are included in 

the Statement of Net Position.  Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 

recognized at the time the liabilities are incurred in the Statement of Activities.  In these 

statements, capital assets are reported and depreciated. 

 

In the Special Revenue Fund, revenues are based on transfers required by law and actual billings 

to other governmental agencies and are recognized when they become measurable and available.  

Expenditures are generally recognized under a modified accrual basis of accounting when the 

related fund liability is incurred.  

   

Governmental funds are reported using a current financial resources measurement focus and the 

modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they become 

measurable and available as net current assets. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Cash 

 

Cash consists of demand deposits held at qualified public depositories. Qualified public 

depositories of public funds are required to provide collateral each month pursuant to Section 

280.04, Florida Statutes. The collateral is held by the Florida Division of Treasury or other 

custodian with full legal rights maintained by the Florida Division of Treasury to transfer 

ownership. Any loss not covered by the pledged securities and deposit insurance would be 

assessed by the Florida Division of Treasury and paid by the other public depositories.  

Therefore, any amount of the FCCOC’s demand deposits in excess of FDIC protection would be 

fully insured or collateralized. 

 

Capital Assets 

 

In the governmental fund statements, general fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to 

acquire or construct them.  Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as 

expenditures in governmental fund types. 

 

In the government-wide statements, tangible assets used in operations with an initial useful life 

that extends beyond one year and valued at more than a specified threshold are capitalized.  

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets 

are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  The cost of normal 

maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend the asset 

lives are not capitalized.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method of 

depreciation over their estimated useful lives (3-5 years).  These assets are reported net of 

accumulated depreciation on the Statement of Net Position. 

 

Support from State Government 

 
The FCCOC received all of its support and revenue from a contract with the State of Florida’s 

Chief Financial Officer.  The contract is renewed and/or renegotiated annually.  Revenue is 

recognized as it is received from the Department of Financial Services’ CCOC Trust Fund. The 

CCOC Trust Fund collects court filing fees for Circuit Civil Court cases. The FCCOC receives 

$4.50 from each filing fee. 

  

Estimates 

  

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America requires FCCOC to make estimates and assumptions 

based on analytical methods in determining depreciation and various accruals. Actual results 

may differ from those estimates. 

 

Subsequent Events 

 

Subsequent events were evaluated through December 2, 2015, which is the date the financial 

statements were available to be released.  As of this date, we were not aware of any other 

subsequent events. 

 

 

 

30



NOTE 2: Budgetary Process 
 

Pursuant to its Plan of Operation, FCCOC shall adopt an annual operating budget and program 

work plan for each fiscal year, as recommended by the Executive Council.  The program work 

plan shall clearly outline the annual objectives of the Executive Council relative to duties and 

responsibilities and provide an anticipated schedule for completion of those objectives.  The 

budget and work plan serves as the basis for funding appropriated by the Florida Legislature.  

The budget is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

 

NOTE 3: Capital Assets 
 

Capital asset activity for the 15 month period ended September 30, 2015 was as follows:  

 

September 30, 2014 Additions Retirements September 30, 2015

Fixed Assets -

        Furniture and Equipment 67,808$                   23,911$  (3,772)$     87,947$                   

Less Accumulated Depreciation (61,890)                    (6,436)     3,772        (64,554)                    

Capital Assets, net 5,918$                     17,475$  -$              23,393$                   

 

 

Depreciation expense of $6,436 is recorded in the Statement of Activities for the government-

wide statements. 

 

NOTE 4: Compensated Absences 
 

Accrued compensated absences that are not due and payable in the current period are not 

reported at the fund level.  As of September 30, 2015 accrued compensated absences of $64,262 

are reported in the Statement of Net Position.   

 

NOTE 5: Operating Leases 
 

The FCCOC has a short-term lease agreement for office space and office equipment.  The lease 

is accounted for as an operating lease.  Lease payments are recorded as expenditures of the fund 

when paid and incurred.  Rental expenditures for the year ended September 30, 2015 was 

$33,751.  The remaining obligations associated with the office space are $33,744 per year for the 

years ended September 30, 2016 and 2017, respectively. 

 

NOTE 6: Retirement 
 

The FCCOC participates in the State of Florida Retirement System, a cost sharing multiple 

employer public employee retirement system administered by the State of Florida. The Florida 

Retirement System provides retirement and disability benefits. The Division of Retirement issues 

a publicly available financial report. The FCCOC contribution to the Florida Retirement System 

for the year ended September 30, 2015 was $35,019. 

31



Governmental Fund

Special Revenue

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable)

Revenues:
State Financial Assistance 2,025,328$   2,025,328$   1,694,577$   (330,751)$      
Interest Income -                   -                   379 379                

Total Revenues 2,025,328    2,025,328    1,694,956    (330,372)        

Expenditures:
Current

State Courts:
Personnel Services 908,703       908,703       775,011 133,692         
Expenses 1,116,625    1,116,625    607,970 508,655         
Operating Capital Outlay -                   -                   23,911         (23,911)          

Total Expenditures 2,025,328    2,025,328    1,406,892    618,436         

Net Change in Fund Balance  - Governmental Fund -                   -                   288,064       288,064         

Restricted Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 409,491       

Restricted Fund Balance, End of Year 697,555$     

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

 16
32



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORTS REQUIRED UNDER 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

AND CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF 

THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



LANIGAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BUSINESS ADVISORS 
www.lanigancpa.com 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 

 

To the Board of Directors 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

Tallahassee, Florida  

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 

statements of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation, as of and for the year ended 

September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 

comprise Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have 

issued our report thereon dated December 2, 2015.  

 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 

procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s internal 

control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
34



To the Board of Directors 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

Page Two 

 

 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 

described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 

internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 

internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 

financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 

required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

  

Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 

internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 

purpose. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tallahassee, Florida 

December 2, 2015 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           Lanigan & Associates, PC

35



LANIGAN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BUSINESS ADVISORS 
www.lanigancpa.com 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR  

EACH MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL  

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 10.550,  

RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

 
 

To the Board of Directors 

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation 

Tallahassee, Florida  

 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Project 

 

We have audited Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s compliance with the types of 

compliance requirements described in the Department of Financial Service’s State Projects 

Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Florida Clerks 

of Court Operations Corporation’s major state projects for the year ended September 30, 2015.  

Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s major state projects are identified in the 

summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 

costs.  

 

Management’s Responsibility 

 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 

and grants applicable to its major state projects.  

  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Florida Clerks of Court 

Operations Corporation’s major State projects based on our audit of the types of compliance 

requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial 

audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards and Chapter 10.550, 

Rules of the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 

that could have a direct and material effect on a major State project occurred. An audit includes 

examining, on a test basis, evidence about Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s 

compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 

necessary in the circumstances.  

 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 

State project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Florida Clerks of 

Court Operations Corporation’s compliance. 

 

 

 

36



Report on Compliance 

Page Two 

 

Opinion on Each Major State Project 

 

In our opinion, Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation complied, in all material 

respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 

material effect on each of its major state projects for the year ended September 30, 2015. 

 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

 

Management of Florida Clerks of Court Operations Corporation is responsible for establishing and 

maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements 

referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Florida 

Clerks of Court Operations Corporation’s internal control over compliance with the types of 

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major State project to determine the 

auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on compliance for each major State project and to test and report on internal control over 

compliance in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we 

do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Florida Clerks of Court Operations 

Corporation’s internal control over compliance. 

 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 

over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 

assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 

requirement of a State project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 

compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 

that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 

requirement of a State project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 

significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or as combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with the type of compliance requirement of a State 

project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 

enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 

first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 

compliance that might be material weaknesses, or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over compliance and results of that testing based on the requirements of 

Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 

purpose. 
 

 

Tallahassee, Florida 

December 2, 2015 

 

           Lanigan & Associates, PC

37



CSFA Number
Contract 
Number Expenditures

STATE:

State of Florida, Department of Financial Services
FCCOC/CFO Contract N/A N/A 1,393,667

TOTAL STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EXPENDED 1,393,667$      

NOTES:

(1)   The Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance was prepared on the accrual basis of
        accounting.
(2)   The program does not utilize sub-recipients.

FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

 22
38



FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

 

1. Type of Audit Report issued on the Financial Statements 

 

Unmodified 

 

2. Significant Deficiencies and/or Material Weaknesses in Internal Control 

 

None noted 

 

3. Noncompliance Material to Audited Financial Statements 

 

Audit disclosed no material instances of noncompliance 

 

4. Significant Deficiencies and/or Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over the 

Major State Project 

None noted 

5. Type of Audit Report Issued on Compliance with Requirements that Could Have a 

Direct and Material Effect on Each Major State Project 

 

Unmodified Opinion 

 

6. Audit Findings Relative to the Major State Project  

 

The audit disclosed no findings required to be reported under Major State Projects 

 

7. Major State Projects 

 

State Project

State of Florida, Department of Financial Services

FCCOC/CFO Contract  
 

8. Threshold 

  

The threshold for distinguishing Type A or Type B programs was $300,000 

 

9.   Auditee Risk Assessment 

 

       The organization qualified as a low risk auditee 

 

 

 

39



FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015  

 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

 

None Reported. 

 

SECTION III – STATE PROJECT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

None Reported. 

 

SECTION IV – PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

 

None Reported. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



 

 

 

 

 

CCOC PROPOSED 

CORPORATION BUDGET  

 

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 

 

 

 

41



 

      

  

Date: June 27, 2016 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 5: Corporation Budget CFY 16/17  
 

Corporation Action: 
Action Requested.  Approve 16/17 Corporation Budget and/or Process for Approval. 
 
Overview: 
For the last year two years the CCOC held off making a recommendation for the Corporation 
Office budget request until after the Clerks submitted their budget requests and the Budget 
Committee made recommendations to the Council for Clerk budgets.  The reason was the 
Council did not want to recommend a CCOC Office budget that was not in-line with the budget 
recommendations for the majority of Clerks statewide.  The Budget Committee will not be 
making recommendations to the Executive Council this year until July.  Therefore a 
recommendation for approval of a CCOC Budget held prior to that may not be in-line with the 
budget recommendations for Clerk budgets. However, the CCOC Plan of Operations requires 
that the full Corporation membership vote annually on the CCOC budget.  The Corporation 
membership could agree to either revise the Plan of Operations language to allow the Executive 
Council to approve a budget at a later time or could in their motion provide the Council with 
authority for this year to later approve a budget request.  The Corporation budget request will 
then be presented to the Legislative Budget Commission for approval.  The budget 
recommendation is due to the LBC by August 1, 2016.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Present a continuation budget request for review for the Corporation membership but provide 
that the Executive Council be given the authority to revisit the request prior to submitting the 
request to the Legislative Budget Commission on August 1, 2016.   
 
  
Attachments/Handouts: 
1. Current CCOC Budget for CFY 15/16. 
2. Example of CCOC Continuation Budget for CFY 16/17. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CCOC Mission Statement:  “As a governmental organization created by the Legislature, we evaluate Clerks’ court-
related budgetary needs, and recommend the fair and equitable allocation of resources needed to sustain court 
operations.” 
 

 

Agenda Item 5 

 Honorable Sharon R. Bock, Esq. 
Palm Beach County 

Chair 
 

Honorable Bob Inzer 
Leon County 

Vice Chair 
 

Honorable Ken Burke, CPA 
Pinellas County 

Secretary/Treasurer 
 

Honorable Neil Kelly 
Lake County 

 
Honorable John Crawford 

Nassau County 
 

Honorable Harvey Ruvin 
Dade County 

 
Honorable Tim Sanders 

Madison County 
 

Honorable Stacy Butterfield, CPA 
Polk County Clerk 

 
Supreme Court 

Honorable Ron Ficarrotta 
13th Judicial Circuit Judge 

 
Senate  

Honorable Kyle Hudson 
Holmes County 

 
House 

Honorable Paula S. O’Neil Ph.D 
Pasco County 

 
Joe Boyd, Esq. 

General Counsel 
 

John Dew 
Executive Director 

 
2560-102 Barrington Circle 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Phone: 850.386.2223 
Fax: 850.386.2224 

  

42



STAFF: $799,949.00

OPS: $22,000.00

GENERAL EXPENSES: $92,761.00

TRAVEL: $60,400.00

STAFF TRAINING: $5,000.00

CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $282,454.00

EDUCATION Services $354,533.00

$1,617,097.00

Budget Aggregate of $1,617,097 Approved by Legislative Budget Commission on 9/15/15

Dollars can be moved between categories

This is the same budget amount as provided in CFY 14/15

CCOC BUDGET - Approved by LBC on 9/15/15 

County Fiscal Year October 1, 2015 - Sept 30, 2016

Adopted CFY 15/16 Budget

Overall Budget

43



STAFF: $843,796.00

OPS: $20,000.00

GENERAL EXPENSES: $92,761.00

TRAVEL: $60,000.00

STAFF TRAINING: $5,000.00

CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES: $241,000.00

EDUCATION Services $354,533.00

$1,617,090.00

CCOC BUDGET - Proposed on June 27, 2016 

County Fiscal Year October 1, 2016 - Sept 30, 2017

Proposed CFY 16/17 Budget

Overall Budget

44



 

 

 

 

 

CCOC PROPOSED MEETING 

DATES FOR 16/17 

 

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 

 

 

 

45



 

      

  

Date: June 27, 2016 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 6:  Future Meeting Dates 
 

Council Action: 
Action Requested.  Approve tentative meeting dates for Council meetings and next Annual 
Corporation Meeting.  
 
Overview: 
Historically the Council meetings and Annual Corporation Meeting is held in conjunction with 
education training sessions for the Clerks.  This is to help lower travel costs for Clerks and staff 
and allow more participation.  
 
We have contacted the leadership of the Florida Court and Comptrollers and based on their 
calendar of events have listed potential meeting dates.  See Attached Calendar.  However the 
2017 Summer Conference dates have not been set yet so we do not have any recommendation 
at this time for the 2017 Annual Corporation Meeting. 
 
Recommendation: 
Review and tentatively approve the dates below. 
 
 
Potential Meeting Dates: 
 
Executive Council Tentative Meetings:  
     July 28, 2016; Orlando 
     November 14th or 15th; San Destin 
     February ? 2017; TBD 
     April or May ?, 2017: TBD 
     July ? 2017; TBD  
     
Annual Corporation Meeting:                    TBD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CCOC Mission Statement:  “As a governmental organization created by the Legislature, we evaluate Clerks’ court-
related budgetary needs, and recommend the fair and equitable allocation of resources needed to sustain court 
operations.” 
 

 

Agenda Item 6 

 Honorable Sharon R. Bock, Esq. 
Palm Beach County 

Chair 
 

Honorable Bob Inzer 
Leon County 

Vice Chair 
 

Honorable Ken Burke, CPA 
Pinellas County 

Secretary/Treasurer 
 

Honorable Neil Kelly 
Lake County 

 
Honorable John Crawford 

Nassau County 
 

Honorable Harvey Ruvin 
Dade County 

 
Honorable Tim Sanders 

Madison County 
 

Honorable Stacy Butterfield, CPA 
Polk County Clerk 

 
Supreme Court 

Honorable Ron Ficarrotta 
13th Judicial Circuit Judge 

 
Senate  

Honorable Kyle Hudson 
Holmes County 

 
House 

Honorable Paula S. O’Neil Ph.D 
Pasco County 

 
Joe Boyd, Esq. 

General Counsel 
 

John Dew 
Executive Director 

 
2560-102 Barrington Circle 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Phone: 850.386.2223 
Fax: 850.386.2224 

  

46



 

 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
 

June 27 FL Courts E-Filing Authority Meeting  Rosen Shingle Creek 
 1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. Orlando 

June 27 CCOC Executive Council Meeting Rosen Shingle Creek Orlando 
 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
 
June 28-30 2016 Summer Conference Rosen Shingle Creek, Orlando  

July 6 A&C Report Training- CLERICUS Vendor Group Webinar 

July 6 A&C Report Training- CLERICUS User Group Webinar 

July 7 A&C Report Training- Benchmark User Group Webinar 

July 12 A&C Report Training- CLERICUS User Group Webinar 

July 13 A&C Report Training- Odyssey User Group  Webinar 
 (also In-house mainframes) 
 
July 15 A&C Report Training- Showcase User Group  Webinar 
 (also New Vision) 
 
July 25 State Partners Workshop Embassy Suites, Palm Beach Gardens 
 
July 29 Auditing the Human Resources Function Webinar 
 
TBD State Partners Workshop Pinellas County 
 
August 5 State Partners Workshop Best Western Gateway Grand, Gainesville 
 
August 10 State Partners Workshop Holiday Inn, Crestview   
 
August 10 A&C Report Training- CLERICUS User Group Webinar 

August 11 State Partners Workshop FCCC, Tallahassee 
 
August 12 A&C Report Training- Benchmark User Group Webinar 

August 16 A&C Report Training- Odyssey User Group  Webinar 
 (also In-house mainframes) 
 
August 17 A&C Report Training- Showcase User Group  Webinar 
 (also New Vision) 
 

47



August 23 A&C Report Training- MAKE UP SESSIONS- ALL USERS  Webinar 
  
September 7  E-Portal/CCCIS Workshop Best Western, DeFuniak Springs 

 
September 8  E-Portal/CCCIS Workshop FCCC, Tallahassee 
 
September 14 E-Portal/CCCIS Workshop Doubletree PGA Hotel, Palm Beach  
 
September 15 E-Portal/CCCIS Workshop Hilton Garden Inn SeaWorld, Orlando 
 
September 16  E-Portal/CCCIS Workshop Lake City, FL 
  
November 15-18 2016 Fall Conference Sandestin Golf and Beach Resort, Destin  

 

48



 

 

 

 

 

ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE OF CCOC  

 

ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 

 

 

 

 

No materials provided 

 

49


	CCOC ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING COVER
	CCOC ANNUAL CORPORATION MEETING COVER
	MINUTES COVER PAGE 
	1 CORP MINUTES 05.31.2015
	CCOC ANNUAL REPORT FROM CHAIR
	CCOC TREASURER REPORT
	3 Treasurers Report
	3- Cover Sheet Treasurer's Report
	2a Financials
	2a- Cover Sheet Financial Report
	2a Financial Report May 2016 Reconciliation (2)


	CCOC FINANCIAL STATEMENT FROM CFY 1415
	4 CCOC Financial Statement
	4- CCOC Financial Statements Cover Sheet
	Agenda Item #4 Attachment Treasurers Report
	ALL MONTHS REPORT 2015-2016
	Governance Communication Letter 9.30.15
	FCCOC Audited Financial Statements 9.30.15-signed


	CCOC PROPOSED CORPORATION BUDGET
	5 Proposed Corporation Budget
	5- Cover Sheet Proposed Budget for CFY 16-17
	2b CCOC Budget Proposal
	2b- Cover Sheet Proposed Budget for CFY 16-17
	2b Corp CFY 15-16 Budget as adopted by LBC on 9-15-15
	2b Proposed Budget with no increases for CFY 16-17 DRAFT


	CCOC PROPOSED MEETING DATES FOR 16
	6 Proposed Council Dates
	6- Cover Sheet Potential Meeting Dates
	6 Calendar of Events 2016 (002)

	ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF CCOC



